
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - February 2018

Hampton Inn and Suites
4301 Martin Way E.

Olympia,  WA



COMMISSIONERS

EX OFFICIOS

STAFF

Bud Sizemore 
Chair

Julia Patterson 
Vice Chair

Ed Troyer Chris Stearns

Senator 
Steve Conway

Senator 
Lynda Wilson

Representative 
David Sawyer

Representative 
Brandon Vick

David Trujillo
Director

Amy Hunter
Deputy Director



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

Hampton Inn and Suites 
4301 Martin Way E., Olympia, WA 98516 

February 8, 2018 
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair. 

 

PUBLIC MEETING  
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 

9:00 AM 
 
 

Tab 1 
 

Call to Order  
Welcome and Introductions                                                                     Bud Sizemore, Chair 
 
Consent Agenda  (Action) 

• January 11, 2018 Commission Meeting Minutes 
• New Licenses and Class III Employees 

 
Director’s Report                                                                                David Trujillo, Director 
 
2018 Legislative Update                              Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
 

Tab 2 
 

Defaults                                                                                           Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney 
 

• Tanesha J. Cayou, CR 2017-01055 Class III Certification Revocation (Action) 
 

• Travis L. Van Pelt, CR 2017-01049 Class III Certification Revocation (Action) 
 
RULE UP FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING 

Tab 3 Petition for New Rule – Texas Hold’em Poker (Action)             Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
                                                                                                     

• WAC 230-15-135 -Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games.  
     

RULES UP FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
Tab 4 Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #3)  

                                                                                                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
• WAC 230-05-175 Individuals license fees 

 
Tab 5 Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #4)  

                                                                                                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
• WAC 230-05-102 – All licensed organizations report activity quarterly beginning with 

the July 1, 2018 through September 30, 2018 quarter. 
• WAC 230-07-155 – Reporting annual activity for raffles, enhanced raffles, 

amusement games, Class A, B, or C bingo, or combination licenses. 
• WAC 230-07-160 – Reporting annual activity for agricultural fairs. 
• WAC 230-09-056 – Activity reports for fund-raising events. 
• WAC 230-10-040 – Disposable bingo cards – Additional requirements. 
• WAC 230-10-180 – Electronic bingo card daubers requirements. 



• WAC 230-10-457 – Activity reports for linked bingo prize providers. 
• WAC 230-13-169 – Annual activity reports for commercial amusement game 

licensees. 
• Chapter 230 – 16 WAC – Manufacturer, Distributor, and Gambling Service Supplier 

Rules. 
 Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comments 
  
 Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public for approximately 1 hour 

Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and Litigation 
The public meeting will reconvene after Executive Session 

  
 Meeting Adjourn 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
January Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

Hampton Inn & Suites 4301 Martin Way E. 
Olympia, WA 98516 

 
Public Meeting  
January 11, 2018 

 
Commissioners Present:  
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
Chris Stearns  
Ed Troyer  

 

                     
                     

 

Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Director; Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; John 
Meader, Assistant Attorney General; Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Julie 
Lies, Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Julie Anderson, Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Executive Session Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore called the January Gambling Commission Meeting to order at 10:35 a.m. and 
immediately went into Executive Session to discuss Tribal Negotiations, Pending Investigations 
and Litigation.   
 
Public Session Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore called the Gambling Commission to order at 12:35 p.m. Chair Sizemore 
announced that because the Gambling Commission is a law enforcement agency, he intends to 
open each meeting with a moment of silence for those officers killed in the line of duty. Today’s 
moment of silence was dedicated to Deputy Daniel McCartney. Deputy McCartney was shot in 
the line of duty January 8th, 2018. 
   
Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the Hampton Inn & Suites and introductions were made.  
The meeting immediately started with the approval of part three of Tab 1, Snoqualmie Class III 
License Certification.  
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Snoqualmie Class III Gaming Employees 
Certifications as presented in the consent agenda. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained.  

Commissioner Troyer had to leave the meeting and was not present for the remainder of the 
action items.  



2 
 

 
There were 42 people in attendance.  
 
The Chair adjusted the agenda to accommodate Senator Phil Fortunato’s schedule. Brian 
Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager, and Senator Fortunato spoke about ESSB 5671. 
Manager Considine mentioned the Commission voted to oppose the bill last year due to staff 
concerns. This bill increases the number of raffles open to the public to four events per year and 
increases the maximum revenue limits for raffles to $10,000. This bill also: authorizes tiered 
levels of discounted packages for raffle tickets; modifies the process for conducting random 
draw raffle events involving a physical item selected by a participant, commonly referred to as 
duck draws; and redefines the term raffle to eliminate the need for an accompanying ticket for 
certain duck draw events. 
Commissioner Patterson asked staff to expand on the concerns expressed in the bill regarding 
the limits an organization can bring in when the organization is not licensed. Manager 
Considine explained that with increases in the potential revenue that comes in, it has potential 
for increased crime. Staff felt a neutral position was for $10,000. Chair Sizemore thanked the 
Senator for coming to the Commission Meeting.  
 
Tab 1 
Consent Agenda: 
November Commission Meeting Minutes/ New Licensees  
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0  
 
Director Trujillo introduced Washington State Gambling Commission’s Newest Agent, Jason 
Downing. Special Agent Downing joined the Licensing Unit on December 28, 2017.  
 
Tab 1 
2018 Legislative Update 
Legal and Legislative Manager Brian Considine presented the legislative materials in Tab 1. 
Manager Considine spoke about the 2018 legislative session and the bills specifically linked to 
the Gambling Commission. The Gambling Commission does not have any agency request 
legislation bills for 2018.  He discussed Representative Sawyer's House Bill 2332 concerning 
problem gambling. Commissioner Patterson, Director Trujillo along with himself testified in 
favor of HB 2332 on January 9th.  No one opposed. The bill specifically directs the commission 
to create a self-exclusion program by June 30th of 2020. Manager Considine explained that a 
one-time startup cost would be needed to create a software infrastructure through IT, education, 
and outreach. The agency estimates that startup costs to the agency are about $47,000. In 
addition, he said that Senator Conway agreed to be the prime sponsor on companion bill Senate 
Bill 6331 and that a Senate hearing will help educate the Senate, Labor, and Commerce 
Committees on the self-exclusion and problem gambling issues. Commissioner Patterson said 
it would be very beneficial to the success of HB 2332 if the Gambling Commission took a 
favorable position.  
 



3 
 

Commissioner Patterson moved that the Gambling Commission support HB 2332 and 
companion Senate Bill 6331 and direct staff to notify the appropriate legislators and 
committees of Commission’s support and attempt to secure a one-time appropriation to offset 
the cost of establishing this program.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0 
 
Commissioner Patterson said this is a wonderful opportunity to make a real difference with 
regard to the issue of problem gambling in this state. She said, right now, if someone was a 
problem gambler in this state, and had moments of clarity, and would like to do something to 
prevent themselves from falling back into their addiction, the person must go to each gambling 
location and ask to be self-barred. One thing we don't have in this state is the ability for those 
citizens of ours to go to one central place and bar themselves from all establishments. She 
explained that this bill will not automatically include the tribes. However, it has language that 
invites the tribes to participate voluntarily and allows time for staff to engage the tribes with our 
hopes that, eventually, they will participate. If it passes, it means that we here at the Gambling 
Commission will be writing the rules on how to create that statewide system for self-barring. 
Commissioner Patterson reiterated that it's an excellent first step but one of the steps that we 
need to be taking to address the problem. Commissioner Stearns also said he agrees that the 
Gambling Commission should support HB 2332. He said this bill is groundbreaking, and he has 
incredible respect and profound gratitude for all the work that's gone into it, and his view is that 
this is the first step. He says problem gambling is an under-addressed issue nationally and in our 
state. And, he said the ability for people to self-exclude and to have it become less of a problem 
for them to do that is really vital for the people of Washington. Chair Sizemore concurred with 
both the statements from the Commissioners.  
 
Manager Considine continued his Legislative update on the following bills. 
 
HB 2103 
Representative Sawyer’s HB 2103 was introduced last year.  It establishes a new appropriated 
account to fund the Gambling Commission’s law enforcement duties. This bill is unlikely to be 
advanced in 2018. 
 
SB 5169 
Senator Ericksen’s SB 5169 was introduced last year and it authorizes fantasy sports as contests 
of skill and excludes them from Washington’s gambling laws. This bill is unlikely to be 
advanced in 2018. 

Initiative I-940 
I-940 is an initiative to the Legislature.  It amends the criminal standard for prosecuting a law 
enforcement officer by removing the malice requirement currently in law and replacing it with an 
objective and subjective good faith standard that both must be met to receive immunity under the 
law.  
 
The legislature will have three options during the 2018 legislative session:  (1) adopt the 
initiative as proposed, with no amendments, and it becomes law without a vote of the people; (2) 



4 
 

no action and the initiative will be on the November 2018 general election ballot for a vote of the 
people; or (3) enact a different bill on the same subject and the bill and initiative will be on the 
November 2018 general election ballot for a vote of the people. 
 
Professional and Amateur Sports Protection Act (PASPA) 
On December 4, 2017, the U.S. Supreme Court heard oral arguments in Christie v. NCAA, et al. 
and New Jersey Thoroughbred Horsemen’s Association v. NCAA, et al.  The court will determine 
if PASPA is constitutional and/or New Jersey’s repeal of its laws prohibiting sports betting was 
lawful. The U.S. Supreme Court will decide no later than July 2018 if PASPA violates the 10th 
Amendment, which protects state’s rights (federalism).   
 
Commission staff will continue to identify the possible impacts of a court decision invalidating 
PASPA.   
 
Director’s Report 
In addition to a written report this month, Director Trujillo announced that the Gambling 
Commission has launched their new website. He recognized the Public Information Officer, 
Heather Songer for her work on the website. He also mentioned that Ms. Songer has been 
working with Pierce County Sheriff’s office on an agency assist to help in the Joint Information 
Center in preparation with events surrounding the line of duty death and planning the funeral of 
Deputy Sheriff Daniel McCartney.  
Director Trujillo acknowledged Mr. Eric Durban from the Muckleshoot Casino who was in the 
audience. He said Mr. Durban previously announced his retirement as Chief Financial Officer 
from Muckleshoot Casino. Director Trujillo said he has known Mr. Durban for many years and 
shared two short stories with the Commission. He will present Mr. Durban with an agency coin 
at his next opportunity.  
Director Trujillo reported on the Spokane Tribal Casino’s opening on January 8, 2018. He said 
that despite the weather and cold temperatures, many people were waiting for the doors to open. 
Director Trujillo also shared that the Gambling Commission is planning a strategic planning 
work session at the April Commissioner meeting. He will share a short introduction of the 
process at the February Commission meeting. At the March Commission meeting he will do a 
presentation that builds on February’s presentation that will further define the April strategic 
planning work session.  
Director Trujillo reported that the Governor’s Office is still considering candidates for the vacant 
position on the Gambling Commission.   
Finally, Director Trujillo gave a brief update on pull-tabs. He reminded everyone that in his 
opinion discussing the topic was not discussing an expansion of gambling. He explained that it 
made sense to see how we can look at technology or modernization of pull-tabs dispensers to 
help to eliminate cheating and theft. He said that no one has asked to do away with paper. Paper 
is integral to the play of pull-tabs in Washington. He also said that if someone requests to do 
away with “paper,” that may make the discussion a topic for the Legislature. He said before 
committing staff to a lot of research on how modernizing pull-tab dispensers, he asked the 
Commissioners how they felt about this topic. Chair Sizemore explained that staff didn’t have 
time that would be necessary, in the short- and mid-range time period, to really get into the depth 



5 
 

and breadth that this topic would require and that this may be discussed later in the year as a 
strategic topic. 
 
Tab 2 
Defaults                                                                                  
Staff Attorney, Haylee Mills presented the materials for Tab 2. 

Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the Card Room Punch Pull-Tab License Revocation 
for MEWE, Inc. dba Viking Card Room. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0  
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the Class III Certification for Sasheen L. White. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0 
 
Tab 3 
Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #4) 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin presented the materials for Tab 3. This is the fourth Rule 
Changes/Fee Simplification package staff will bring forward to make changes to the 
Commission’s licensing fee structure. This package clarifies that annual activity report filers will 
report their gambling activity for their license year through June 30, 2018 on July 30, 2018. All 
licensees will begin reporting their activity quarterly beginning with the July 1-September 30 
quarter. The Rule Changes/Fee Simplification Package #4 will likely be up for final action at the 
March Commission Meeting.  
 
Public Comment: There was no public comment. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to file the Rule Changes/Fee Simplification Package #4 as 
presented by staff. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0 
 
Tab 4  
Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #1)   
Assistant Director Tina Griffin presented the materials for Tab 4. The Rule Changes/Fee 
Simplification Package #1 was the first Rule Changes/Fee Simplification package to be heard by 
the Commission in September 2017. At the January meeting there was no further discussion on 
the package. Staff recommends final action with an effective date of May 1, 2018, so that the 
licensees who are renewing June 30, 2018 will pay their fees under the new system.   
 
Public Comment: There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Fee Simplification Package #1 as presented by 
staff with an effective date of May 1, 2018.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0 
 



6 
 

Tab 5 
Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #2)   
Assistant Director Griffin presented the materials for Tab 5. The Rule Changes/Fee 
Simplification Package #2 was first heard by the Commission in October 2017. Staff is asking 
for action to be taken on a couple rules in regards to this package. Package #2 deals with a 
number of rules, mainly removing the word “class” and then instead of using the word “class” or 
“license class,” we now focus on the gross gambling receipts level of the licensee. This rules 
package also establishes new due dates for quarterly activity reports. It requires licensees to 
submit quarterly activity reports until they move into the new fee structure and then for the last 
quarter that they operated under the old fee structure, licensees will need to submit a quarterly 
activity report. Also, service suppliers will need to submit quarterly activity reports beginning 
with the third quarter of 2018. Lastly, it adds a process that we will use if a licensee doesn't 
submit to their quarterly license report or doesn't pay their quarterly licensing fees. Staff is 
requesting final action with an effective date of July 1st, 2018. 
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to approve the Rule Changes/Fee Simplification Package #2, as 
presented by staff with an effective date of July 1st, 2018. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0 
 
Public Comment: Aleena Schneider with Harlequin Productions gave public testimony 
regarding her concerns about the license fee increase of 150% for her company. She said that the 
real impact to her organization is that they are currently paying about $680 a year, and the 
change would put them closer to $1,700 a year; a 150% increase. And she said for a small 
nonprofit, $1,000 is a huge expense. She added that she had sent in her comments, and was really 
pleasantly surprised when Mr. Trujillo called her to set up an appointment to come and talk to 
her. She stated that she understands things haven't changed, and the Commission is continuing 
forward so she wanted to come testify in person. She stated that she has an accounting 
background and thought the main problem was the decision to cap the fee at $2,000.  She added 
that the change serves to punish the small nonprofits and she can’t imagine that was intentional.  
Chair Sizemore discussed the process and the key issues being addressed and that the 1973 
structure was no longer reflective of today and the new structure more accurately reflected level 
of activity and effort.  Director Trujillo offered to personally meet with her board. Chair 
Sizemore thanked Ms. Schneider for her testimony and asked her to come back and speak to the 
Commission after two quarters under the new structure and tell them how it is going.       
 
Tab 6 
Staff Request for New Rule 
Assistant Director Griffin presented the materials for Tab 6. Staff is requesting this new rule to 
require a manufacture or its designee to submit electronic or mechanical gambling equipment for 
evaluation during rule-making. This rule will allow staff to request and evaluate equipment 
during the rule-making process. Commissioners first heard this request in September 2017. Staff 
recommends the Commissioners take final action effective 31 days from filing with the Code 
Reviser’s Office. 
 



7 
 

Commissioner Patterson moved to approve WAC 230-17-192, as presented by staff effective 31 
days from filing with the Code Reviser’s Office. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 3:0 
 
Public Comment: There was no public comment. 

Tab 7 
Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #3) 
Assistant Director Griffin presented the materials for Tab 7. This Rule Changes/Fee 
Simplification package is the third rules packages. This package sets out the individual license 
fees under the new fee structure. Staff anticipates asking for an effective date of May 1, 2018, so 
that licensees who are renewing June 30, 2018 will pay their fees under the new system.  
 
Public Comment: There was no public comment. 
 
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comment 
 
Commissioner Stearns commented on the website and said it looked outstanding. 
 
Commissioner Patterson commented that she will be at the capitol to testify on Representative 
Sawyer’s bill HB 2332.  
 
Manager Brian Considine added that Commissioner Patterson and Chair Sizemore will have 
confirmation hearings on January 17, 2018.  
 
Chair Sizemore announced that our next meeting will be at the Hampton Inn and Suites on 
February 8, 2018. 
 
Commission meeting adjourned at 2:57 p.m. 
 



































































 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
January 30, 2018 
 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Lynda Wilson 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer     Representative David Sawyer 
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Managing Attorney/Legislative Liaison  
 
SUBJECT:  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
We are already into the fourth week of the 2018 60-day session.  The following legislative 
cutoffs are happening soon: 

• Friday, February 2, 2018 - Policy committee cutoff;  
• Tuesday, February 6, 2018 - Fiscal committee cutoff; and 
• Wednesday, February 14, 2018 - Last day bills can be considered in its house of origin. 

 
Additionally, sine die is on March 8, 2018, and it will occur prior to our March Commission 
Meeting.   
 
Therefore, our February meeting will be the last opportunity to brief you on bills and for you 
vote to take a position on a bill.  Below is a summary of noteworthy bills we are currently 
tracking, but many of these bills may be dead by the time we meet on February 8, 2018.   
 
Bills The Commission Voted to Support: 
 

1. EHB 2332 (attached) and SB 6331, Concerning Gambling Addiction  
Representative Sawyer’s HB 2332 self-exclusion bill was passed out of the House, 94-3, 
on January 24, 2018, with an amendment. The amendment adds protections for personal 
information that we collect under the program.  Staff does not have any concerns about 
these requirements at this time.  The amended bill is now in Senate Labor and Commerce 
and should be heard and voted out of committee by the February 18, 2018 policy 
committee cutoff. 

 
Senator Conway’s SB 6331 is scheduled for a hearing on January 31, 2018.  The 
expectation is the hearing will be a good opportunity to discuss self-exclusion and 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
January 30, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

problem gambling issues with the committee.  The expectation is for the committee to 
pass EHB 2332 out of committee and it will not take action on SB 6331. 

 
Possible Legislation Action Items: 
 

2. HB 2881, Creating a new crime applicable to platforms, including internet web sites, 
that facilitate unauthorized gambling activity (attached) 
Representative Sawyer’s HB 2881 criminalizes the operation of an online website or 
platform that facilitates, or is used to facilitate, an unauthorized gambling activity.  The 
bill makes it a Class C felony for a person to knowingly facilitate an illegal gambling 
where using virtual items are used as things of value.   
 
This bill is meant to address issues related to the Commission’s case with Valve and 
online “skin” gambling. The bill is scheduled for a hearing in the House Public Safety 
Committee on January 30, 2018. Commissioner Stearns, Director Trujillo, and I will 
testify on the bill.  We will be neutral on the bill since you have not voted yet to take a 
position and will be there to provide background information on “skins,” “skin” 
gambling, and what we learned through our investigation.     
 

3. SB 6266, Concerning loot boxes in online games and apps (attached) 
Senator Ranker’s SB 6266 identifies the use of video game “loot boxes” as a topic the 
Commission should investigate and determine if it is gambling.  Loot boxes are a digital 
“box” or “grab bag” that video game players have to spend real or in-game currency on.  
Opening the box gives the player a chance at obtaining a virtual item or currency that can 
be used in the video game.  The player does not know what she or he will win.  The items 
received in a loot box can be cosmetic, “skins” are an example, or something to help you 
perform better in the game.  This topic received attention after E.A. Sports’ Star Wars 
Battlefront II video game included loot boxes in the gameplay.  Players became upset and 
complained the “pay to play” was wrong and was akin to gambling.  However, the use of 
loot boxes has been around for a few years and was mostly found in online games like 
those found on Valve’s platform or mobile device games. 
 
SB 6266 requires the Commission to conduct a study and report to the Legislature by 
December 1, 2018 on the following topics: (1) Whether games and apps containing these 
mechanisms are considered gambling under Washington law; (2) whether these 
mechanisms belong in games and apps; (3) whether minors and other young people, who 
may be more vulnerable to gambling addiction, should have access to games and apps 
with these mechanisms; and (4) the lack of disclosure and transparency with respect to 
the odds of receiving each type of virtual item. 
 
Director Trujillo and I met with Senator Ranker to discuss his bill.  He is very concerned 
about the use of loot boxes and has discussed them with several company leaders within 
the gaming industry.  He would like the Commission’s support on his bill. 
 
A hearing has been scheduled for January 31, 2018 in the Senate Labor and Commerce 
Committee.  Commissioner Stearns, Director Trujillo, and I will testify on the bill.  We 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
January 30, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

will be neutral on the bill since you have not voted yet to take a position and will be there 
to provide background information on loot boxes. 

 
Bills with Direct Gambling Impacts. 
 

4. HB 2416, Concerning workers at gambling establishments participating as a player 
in gambling activities 

 
Representative Kirby’s HB 2416 had a hearing in House Commerce and Gaming on 
January 16, 2018.  Director Trujillo and I testified on the bill. We were neutral and 
provided information and background on the topic. We had a good discussion about 
gambling employees gambling at their places of employment.  Representative Kirby 
believes rule-making is the best way to address employees gambling at their places of 
employment.  He has requested that his bill not move at this time and hopes the 
Commission will take up this issue if/when the rule petition is re-submitted in 2018. 
 

5. ESSB 5671, An act relating to simplifying the process for bona fide charitable and 
nonprofit organization to engage in activities and social pastimes, and raise funds 
for their authorized purposes 
 
Senator Fortunato discussed his ESSB 5671 and his raffle concerns with you at the 
January 2018 Commission meeting. I have had several discussions with him since the 
January meeting, and he would like to see the Commission enter into rule-making, if 
possible, to address his concerns related to discount raffle ticket packages and drawing of 
objects instead of a ticket in a raffle.  Our position is currently opposed due to changes 
made to the operation of raffles, and I recommend that our position be unchanged until 
the problematic language is corrected or dropped from the bill. At this time, ESSB 5671 
is unlikely to move out of the Senate and I do not believe any new vote by you is 
warranted at this time.   
  

6. HB 2103, Concerning the gambling commission 
Representative Sawyer’s HB 2103 was introduced last year and it establishes a new 
appropriated account to fund the Gambling Commission’s law enforcement duties.  This 
bill is not moving forward this session. 
 

7. SB 5169, Classifying fantasy sports contests as contests of skill 
Senator Ericksen’s SB 5169 was introduced last year and it authorizes fantasy sports as 
contests of skill and excludes them from Washington’s gambling laws.  This bill is not 
moving forward this session. 

 
Law Enforcement Bills 
 

8. SHB 2718, Concerning seizure and forfeiture procedures and reporting 
Representatives Shea and Goodman’s HB 2718 address civil forfeiture standards and 
reporting.  I briefed you on a draft bill during our January Commission meeting.   This 
bill does not amend the Gambling Act.  However, it creates some new civil forfeiture 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
January 30, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

reporting requirements for the Commission and all other law enforcement agencies.  
WASPC and other stakeholders have taken the lead on this bill due to concerns with 
some language in the amended bill, including some reporting requirements.  We will 
continue to monitor the bill but I recommend taking no action at this time due to the 
likely minimal impact the bill will have on the agency. 

 
 

9. Initiative Measure Number 940 (I-940), Police Training and Criminal Liability in 
Cases of Deadly Force Measure 
I-940 was certified by the Secretary of State and it is now filed with the Legislature.  The 
legislature now has three options during the 2018 legislative session:  (1) adopt the 
initiative as proposed, with no amendments, and it becomes law without a vote of the 
people; (2) no action and the initiative will be on the November 2018 general election 
ballot for a vote of the people; or (3) enact a different bill on the same subject and the bill 
and initiative will be on the November 2018 general election ballot for a vote of the 
people. 
 
It is expected that the Legislature will not pass this initiative as a bill or pass a competing 
bill with a different criminal standard and training requirements.  Therefore, we expect I-
940 to be put to a vote of the people during the November 2018 general election. 

 
Budget and Other Bills 
 

10. HB 2299/SB 6032, supplemental operating appropriations 
The House and Senate have filed their proposed 2018 supplemental budget bills.  Neither 
bill impacts our gambling revolving account.  Both bills maintain the current level of 
funding for the problem gambling account.  Both bills reduce the state’s contribution for 
employee health insurance payments from $957/month to $906/month – this would 
reduce the agency’s FY19 costs by $612/employee, a total of $69,768 for our budgeted 
114 employees.  We will continue to monitor these fiscal bills and will report back to you 
if any changes are made that will impact the agency or the gambling revolving account. 
 
 

11. HB 2278, Concerning personal information privacy protections in government 
entities 
Representative Morris’ HB 2278 was passed out of House State Government, Elections, 
and Information Technology. It has been referred to Transportation and is not yet 
scheduled for a hearing in this committee.  This bill would impact the Commission, but 
many agencies have concerns about the impact and cost of this bill.  The Governor’s 
Office is organizing with the larger agencies to work and comment on this bill.  We will 
continue to monitor it but I do not expect it to be passed into law, especially as it is 
currently written. 
 

Problem Gambling Legislative Work Session 
12. The problem gaming work session in the House Commerce and Gaming Committee is 

tentatively scheduled for February 19, 2018, from 1:30 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.  I have let 
Committee staff know that Commissioners Patterson and Stearns, Director Trujillo, and I 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
January 30, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

will participate in the work session.  I will be working with committee staff to ensure we 
have a good group of presenters and successful work session. 
 

Commissioner Confirmations 
13. Commissioner Sizemore and Commissioner Patterson had confirmation hearings in the 

Senate Labor and Commerce Committee on January 17, 2018.  The Labor and Commerce 
Committee voted to confirm both Commissioners.  They are now on the Senate 
Confirmation Calendar and will likely be confirmed by vote of the full Senate sometime 
in the next few weeks. 
 
I am still working with Senate staff to have Commissioner Stearns and Commissioner 
Troyer also confirmed this session, if possible.  



AN ACT Relating to gambling addiction; amending RCW 9.46.071 and1
42.56.230; and providing an effective date.2

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:3

Sec. 1.  RCW 9.46.071 and 2005 c 369 s 9 are each amended to read4
as follows:5

(1)(a) The legislature recognizes that some individuals in this6
state are problem or pathological gamblers. Because the state7
promotes and regulates gambling through the activities of the state8
lottery commission, the Washington horse racing commission, and the9
Washington state gambling commission, the state has the10
responsibility to continue to provide resources for the support of11
services for problem and pathological gamblers. Therefore, the12
Washington state gambling commission, the Washington horse racing13
commission, and the state lottery commission shall jointly develop14
informational signs concerning problem and pathological gambling15
which include a toll-free hotline number for problem and pathological16
gamblers. The signs shall be placed in the establishments of gambling17
licensees, horse racing licensees, and lottery retailers. In18
addition, the Washington state gambling commission, the Washington19
horse racing commission, and the state lottery commission may also20
contract with other qualified entities to provide public awareness,21

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL 2332

State of Washington 65th Legislature 2018 Regular Session
By Representatives Sawyer, Condotta, Ormsby, and Appleton
Prefiled 12/28/17.  Read first time 01/08/18.  Referred to Committee
on Commerce & Gaming.

p. 1 EHB 2332



training, and other services to ensure the intent of this section is1
fulfilled.2

(b) The legislature finds that problem and pathological gambling3
continues to negatively impact individuals and families in this4
state. It is estimated that about five percent of adults in the state5
will experience problem or pathological gambling behaviors in their6
lifetime. Previous and ongoing efforts to prevent and assist people7
in treating problem and pathological gambling have proven beneficial,8
such as increasing public awareness, funding treatment services for9
individuals, and requiring informational signs in gambling10
establishments that include a toll-free hotline number for problem11
and pathological gamblers. However, people and families facing12
problem or pathological gambling issues will further benefit from the13
availability of a uniform self-exclusion program where people may14
voluntarily exclude themselves from gambling at multiple gambling15
establishments by submitting one self-exclusion form to the state16
from one location. It is the intent of subsection (3) of this section17
to establish such a uniform self-exclusion program to assist people18
in preventing or ending problem or pathological gambling behaviors19
permanently.20

(2)(a) During any period in which RCW 82.04.285(2) is in effect,21
the commission may not increase fees payable by licensees under its22
jurisdiction for the purpose of funding services for problem and23
pathological gambling. Any fee imposed or increased by the24
commission, for the purpose of funding these services, before July 1,25
2005, ((shall have)) has no force and effect after July 1, 2005.26

(b) During any period in which RCW 82.04.285(2) is not in effect:27
(i) The commission, the Washington state horse racing commission,28

and the state lottery commission may contract for services, in29
addition to those authorized in subsection (1) of this section, to30
assist in providing for treatment of problem and pathological31
gambling; and32

(ii) The commission may increase fees payable by ((licenses33
[licensees])) licensees under its jurisdiction for the purpose of34
funding the services authorized in this section for problem and35
pathological gamblers.36

(3) By June 30, 2020, the commission must adopt rules37
establishing a self-exclusion program for problem and pathological38
gamblers. The commission has discretion in establishing the scope and39

p. 2 EHB 2332



requirements of the self-exclusion program. However, the program must1
include, at a minimum, the following:2

(a) A process for a person who believes the person is or may be a3
problem or pathological gambler to voluntarily exclude themselves4
from gambling at all gambling establishments licensed by the5
commission; and6

(b) A process for casinos owned or operated by Indian tribes or7
tribal enterprises to voluntarily participate in the self-exclusion8
program, so that ultimately a person who is or may be a problem or9
pathological gambler may self-exclude themselves from gambling at all10
casinos and state-licensed gambling establishments in the state, no11
matter who owns or operates the casino or state-licensed gambling12
establishment, by submitting one form at one location.13

(4)(a) The commission may not contract with a third party to14
administer the self-exclusion program created pursuant to this15
section.16

(b) Any personal information collected, stored, or accessed under17
the self-exclusion program created pursuant to this section may not18
be sold, monetized, or traded by the commission or any person or19
business authorized to access personal information through the20
program.21

(c) Any personal information collected, stored, or accessed under22
the self-exclusion program may not be used for any purpose other than23
the administration of the self-exclusion program.24

Sec. 2.  RCW 42.56.230 and 2017 3rd sp.s. c 6 s 222 are each25
amended to read as follows:26

The following personal information is exempt from public27
inspection and copying under this chapter:28

(1) Personal information in any files maintained for students in29
public schools, patients or clients of public institutions or public30
health agencies, or welfare recipients;31

(2)(a) Personal information:32
(i) For a child enrolled in licensed child care in any files33

maintained by the department of children, youth, and families;34
(ii) For a child enrolled in a public or nonprofit program35

serving or pertaining to children, adolescents, or students,36
including but not limited to early learning or child care services,37
parks and recreation programs, youth development programs, and after-38
school programs; or39

p. 3 EHB 2332



(iii) For the family members or guardians of a child who is1
subject to the exemption under this subsection (2) if the family2
member or guardian has the same last name as the child or if the3
family member or guardian resides at the same address as the child4
and disclosure of the family member's or guardian's information would5
result in disclosure of the personal information exempted under6
(a)(i) and (ii) of this subsection.7

(b) Emergency contact information under this subsection (2) may8
be provided to appropriate authorities and medical personnel for the9
purpose of treating the individual during an emergency situation;10

(3) Personal information in files maintained for employees,11
appointees, or elected officials of any public agency to the extent12
that disclosure would violate their right to privacy;13

(4) Information required of any taxpayer in connection with the14
assessment or collection of any tax if the disclosure of the15
information to other persons would: (a) Be prohibited to such persons16
by RCW 84.08.210, 82.32.330, 84.40.020, 84.40.340, or any ordinance17
authorized under RCW 35.102.145; or (b) violate the taxpayer's right18
to privacy or result in unfair competitive disadvantage to the19
taxpayer;20

(5) Credit card numbers, debit card numbers, electronic check21
numbers, card expiration dates, or bank or other financial22
information as defined in RCW 9.35.005 including social security23
numbers, except when disclosure is expressly required by or governed24
by other law;25

(6) Personal and financial information related to a small loan or26
any system of authorizing a small loan in RCW 31.45.093;27

(7)(a)(i) Any record used to prove identity, age, residential28
address, social security number, or other personal information29
required to apply for a driver's license or identicard.30

(((b))) (ii) Information provided under RCW 46.20.111 that31
indicates that an applicant declined to register with the selective32
service system.33

(((c))) (iii) Any record pertaining to a vehicle license plate,34
driver's license, or identicard issued under RCW 46.08.066 that,35
alone or in combination with any other records, may reveal the36
identity of an individual, or reveal that an individual is or was,37
performing an undercover or covert law enforcement, confidential38
public health work, public assistance fraud, or child support39
investigative activity. This exemption does not prevent the release40

p. 4 EHB 2332



of the total number of vehicle license plates, drivers' licenses, or1
identicards that, under RCW 46.08.066, an agency or department has2
applied for, been issued, denied, returned, destroyed, lost, and3
reported for misuse.4

(((d))) (iv) Any record pertaining to a vessel registration5
issued under RCW 88.02.330 that, alone or in combination with any6
other records, may reveal the identity of an individual, or reveal7
that an individual is or was, performing an undercover or covert law8
enforcement activity. This exemption does not prevent the release of9
the total number of vessel registrations that, under RCW 88.02.330,10
an agency or department has applied for, been issued, denied,11
returned, destroyed, lost, and reported for misuse.12

(b) Upon request by the legislature, the department of licensing13
must provide a report to the legislature containing all of the14
information in (a)(iii) and (iv) of this subsection (7) that is15
subject to public disclosure;16

(8) All information related to individual claims resolution17
structured settlement agreements submitted to the board of industrial18
insurance appeals under RCW 51.04.063, other than final orders from19
the board of industrial insurance appeals((.20

Upon request by the legislature, the department of licensing21
shall provide a report to the legislature containing all of the22
information in subsection (7)(c) and (d) of this section that is23
subject to public disclosure; and));24

(9) Voluntarily submitted information contained in a database25
that is part of or associated with enhanced 911 emergency26
communications systems, or information contained or used in emergency27
notification systems as provided under RCW 38.52.575 and 38.52.577;28
and29

(10) All information submitted by a person to the state, either30
directly or through a state-licensed gambling establishment or casino31
owned or operated by an Indian tribe or tribal enterprise, as part of32
the self-exclusion program established in RCW 9.46.071 for people who33
believe they are or may be a problem or pathological gambler.34

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 3.  This act takes effect July 1, 2018.35

--- END ---

p. 5 EHB 2332



AN ACT Relating to creating a new crime applicable to platforms,1
including internet web sites, that facilitate unauthorized gambling2
activity; reenacting and amending RCW 9.94A.515; adding new sections3
to chapter 9.46 RCW; and prescribing penalties.4

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:5

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 1.  A new section is added to chapter 9.46 RCW6
to read as follows:7

(1) A person is guilty of operating a platform that facilitates8
an unauthorized gambling activity if the person operates a platform,9
including an internet web site, that charges customers a fee for a10
service or product and on which customers may transfer virtual items11
with or without a charge, if the person knows or, based on the12
totality of the circumstances, could reasonably be expected to know,13
that third parties use the platform to engage in an unauthorized14
gambling activity involving the wager or transfer of virtual items.15

(2) A violation of this section is a class C felony.16
(3) For purposes of this section:17
(a) "Customer" means a person with an account on the platform or18

a person who uses or visits the platform for the purpose of using or19
purchasing a product or service offered or provided by or through the20
platform; and21

H-3977.1
HOUSE BILL 2881

State of Washington 65th Legislature 2018 Regular Session
By Representatives Sawyer and Vick

p. 1 HB 2881



(b) "Platform" means an internet web site, service, product, or1
business model:2

(i) Through which the owner or operator charges customers a fee3
for a product or service offered or made available to customers, even4
if some products or services offered or made available to customers5
are free; and6

(ii) That involves in any respect the use, transfer, or sale of a7
virtual item.8

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 2.  A new section is added to chapter 9.46 RCW9
to read as follows:10

"Virtual item" means a person, player, or character's appearance,11
accessory, or privilege in a video, computer, internet, or electronic12
game, or any other type of digital or intangible object or thing, if13
such object or thing is capable of conversion into a currency used14
anywhere in the world or is capable of being accepted as a deposit by15
an operator of a gambling activity, in the form of a store of value,16
for the purposes of gambling on the internet.17

Sec. 3.  RCW 9.94A.515 and 2017 c 335 s 4, 2017 c 292 s 3, 2017 c18
272 s 10, and 2017 c 266 s 8 are each reenacted and amended to read19
as follows:20
 21  TABLE 2  

 22
 23

 CRIMES INCLUDED WITHIN EACH

SERIOUSNESS LEVEL

 

 24 XVI Aggravated Murder 1 (RCW 10.95.020)  

 25 XV Homicide by abuse (RCW 9A.32.055)  

 26
 27

 Malicious explosion 1 (RCW

70.74.280(1))

 

 28  Murder 1 (RCW 9A.32.030)  

 29 XIV Murder 2 (RCW 9A.32.050)  

 30  Trafficking 1 (RCW 9A.40.100(1))  

 31
 32

XIII Malicious explosion 2 (RCW

70.74.280(2))

 

 33
 34

 Malicious placement of an explosive 1

(RCW 70.74.270(1))

 

 35 XII Assault 1 (RCW 9A.36.011)  

p. 2 HB 2881



 1  Assault of a Child 1 (RCW 9A.36.120)  

 2
 3

 Malicious placement of an imitation

device 1 (RCW 70.74.272(1)(a))

 

 4
 5

 Promoting Commercial Sexual Abuse of

a Minor (RCW 9.68A.101)

 

 6  Rape 1 (RCW 9A.44.040)  

 7  Rape of a Child 1 (RCW 9A.44.073)  

 8  Trafficking 2 (RCW 9A.40.100(3))  

 9 XI Manslaughter 1 (RCW 9A.32.060)  

 10  Rape 2 (RCW 9A.44.050)  

 11  Rape of a Child 2 (RCW 9A.44.076)  

 12
 13
 14

 Vehicular Homicide, by being under the

influence of intoxicating liquor or

any drug (RCW 46.61.520)

 

 15
 16
 17

 Vehicular Homicide, by the operation of

any vehicle in a reckless manner

(RCW 46.61.520)

 

 18 X Child Molestation 1 (RCW 9A.44.083)  

 19
 20

 Criminal Mistreatment 1 (RCW

9A.42.020)

 

 21
 22
 23

 Indecent Liberties (with forcible

compulsion) (RCW

9A.44.100(1)(a))

 

 24  Kidnapping 1 (RCW 9A.40.020)  

 25
 26

 Leading Organized Crime (RCW

9A.82.060(1)(a))

 

 27
 28

 Malicious explosion 3 (RCW

70.74.280(3))

 

 29
 30

 Sexually Violent Predator Escape (RCW

9A.76.115)

 

 31
 32

IX Abandonment of Dependent Person 1

(RCW 9A.42.060)

 

 33  Assault of a Child 2 (RCW 9A.36.130)  

 34
 35

 Explosive devices prohibited (RCW

70.74.180)

 

p. 3 HB 2881



 1
 2

 Hit and Run—Death (RCW

46.52.020(4)(a))

 

 3
 4
 5

 Homicide by Watercraft, by being under

the influence of intoxicating liquor

or any drug (RCW 79A.60.050)

 

 6
 7

 Inciting Criminal Profiteering (RCW

9A.82.060(1)(b))

 

 8
 9

 Malicious placement of an explosive 2

(RCW 70.74.270(2))

 

 10  Robbery 1 (RCW 9A.56.200)  

 11  Sexual Exploitation (RCW 9.68A.040)  

 12 VIII Arson 1 (RCW 9A.48.020)  

 13
 14

 Commercial Sexual Abuse of a Minor

(RCW 9.68A.100)

 

 15
 16
 17

 Homicide by Watercraft, by the

operation of any vessel in a reckless

manner (RCW 79A.60.050)

 

 18  Manslaughter 2 (RCW 9A.32.070)  

 19
 20

 Promoting Prostitution 1 (RCW

9A.88.070)

 

 21  Theft of Ammonia (RCW 69.55.010)  

 22
 23
 24

VII Air bag diagnostic systems (causing

bodily injury or death) (RCW

46.37.660(2)(b))

 

 25
 26
 27

 Air bag replacement requirements

(causing bodily injury or death)

(RCW 46.37.660(1)(b))

 

 28  Burglary 1 (RCW 9A.52.020)  

 29  Child Molestation 2 (RCW 9A.44.086)  

 30
 31

 Civil Disorder Training (RCW

9A.48.120)

 

 32
 33
 34

 Dealing in depictions of minor engaged

in sexually explicit conduct 1

(RCW 9.68A.050(1))

 

 35  Drive-by Shooting (RCW 9A.36.045)  

p. 4 HB 2881



 1
 2
 3

 Homicide by Watercraft, by disregard

for the safety of others (RCW

79A.60.050)

 

 4
 5
 6

 Indecent Liberties (without forcible

compulsion) (RCW 9A.44.100(1)

(b) and (c))

 

 7
 8

 Introducing Contraband 1 (RCW

9A.76.140)

 

 9
 10

 Malicious placement of an explosive 3

(RCW 70.74.270(3))

 

 11
 12
 13
 14
 15

 Manufacture or import counterfeit,

nonfunctional, damaged, or

previously deployed air bag

(causing bodily injury or death)

(RCW 46.37.650(1)(b))

 

 16
 17
 18

 Negligently Causing Death By Use of a

Signal Preemption Device (RCW

46.37.675)

 

 19
 20
 21
 22

 ((Sale [of])) Sell, install, or reinstall

counterfeit, nonfunctional,

damaged, or previously deployed

airbag (RCW 46.37.650(2)(b))

 

 23
 24
 25
 26

 Sending, bringing into state depictions

of minor engaged in sexually

explicit conduct 1 (RCW

9.68A.060(1))

 

 27
 28

 Unlawful Possession of a Firearm in the

first degree (RCW 9.41.040(1))

 

 29
 30

 Use of a Machine Gun in Commission

of a Felony (RCW 9.41.225)

 

 31
 32
 33

 Vehicular Homicide, by disregard for

the safety of others (RCW

46.61.520)

 

 34
 35

VI Bail Jumping with Murder 1 (RCW

9A.76.170(3)(a))

 

 36  Bribery (RCW 9A.68.010)  

 37  Incest 1 (RCW 9A.64.020(1))  

p. 5 HB 2881



 1  Intimidating a Judge (RCW 9A.72.160)  

 2
 3

 Intimidating a Juror/Witness (RCW

9A.72.110, 9A.72.130)

 

 4
 5

 Malicious placement of an imitation

device 2 (RCW 70.74.272(1)(b))

 

 6
 7
 8

 Possession of Depictions of a Minor

Engaged in Sexually Explicit

Conduct 1 (RCW 9.68A.070(1))

 

 9  Rape of a Child 3 (RCW 9A.44.079)  

 10  Theft of a Firearm (RCW 9A.56.300)  

 11
 12

 Theft from a Vulnerable Adult 1 (RCW

9A.56.400(1))

 

 13
 14

 Unlawful Storage of Ammonia (RCW

69.55.020)

 

 15
 16

V Abandonment of Dependent Person 2

(RCW 9A.42.070)

 

 17
 18
 19

 Advancing money or property for

extortionate extension of credit

(RCW 9A.82.030)

 

 20
 21

 Air bag diagnostic systems (RCW

46.37.660(2)(c))

 

 22
 23

 Air bag replacement requirements

(RCW 46.37.660(1)(c))

 

 24
 25

 Bail Jumping with class A Felony

(RCW 9A.76.170(3)(b))

 

 26  Child Molestation 3 (RCW 9A.44.089)  

 27
 28

 Criminal Mistreatment 2 (RCW

9A.42.030)

 

 29
 30

 Custodial Sexual Misconduct 1 (RCW

9A.44.160)

 

 31
 32
 33

 Dealing in Depictions of Minor

Engaged in Sexually Explicit

Conduct 2 (RCW 9.68A.050(2))

 

p. 6 HB 2881



 1
 2
 3
 4
 5

 Domestic Violence Court Order

Violation (RCW 10.99.040,

10.99.050, 26.09.300, 26.10.220,

26.26.138, 26.50.110, 26.52.070, or

74.34.145)

 

 6  Extortion 1 (RCW 9A.56.120)  

 7
 8

 Extortionate Extension of Credit (RCW

9A.82.020)

 

 9
 10
 11

 Extortionate Means to Collect

Extensions of Credit (RCW

9A.82.040)

 

 12  Incest 2 (RCW 9A.64.020(2))  

 13  Kidnapping 2 (RCW 9A.40.030)  

 14
 15
 16
 17

 Manufacture or import counterfeit,

nonfunctional, damaged, or

previously deployed air bag (RCW

46.37.650(1)(c))

 

 18  Perjury 1 (RCW 9A.72.020)  

 19
 20

 Persistent prison misbehavior (RCW

9.94.070)

 

 21
 22

 Possession of a Stolen Firearm (RCW

9A.56.310)

 

 23  Rape 3 (RCW 9A.44.060)  

 24
 25

 Rendering Criminal Assistance 1 (RCW

9A.76.070)

 

 26
 27
 28
 29

 ((Sale [of])) Sell, install, or reinstall

counterfeit, nonfunctional,

damaged, or previously deployed

airbag (RCW 46.37.650(2)(c))

 

 30
 31
 32
 33

 Sending, Bringing into State Depictions

of Minor Engaged in Sexually

Explicit Conduct 2 (RCW

9.68A.060(2))

 

 34
 35

 Sexual Misconduct with a Minor 1

(RCW 9A.44.093)

 

p. 7 HB 2881



 1
 2

 Sexually Violating Human Remains

(RCW 9A.44.105)

 

 3  Stalking (RCW 9A.46.110)  

 4
 5

 Taking Motor Vehicle Without

Permission 1 (RCW 9A.56.070)

 

 6 IV Arson 2 (RCW 9A.48.030)  

 7  Assault 2 (RCW 9A.36.021)  

 8
 9
 10

 Assault 3 (of a Peace Officer with a

Projectile Stun Gun) (RCW

9A.36.031(1)(h))

 

 11
 12

 Assault 4 (third domestic violence

offense) (RCW 9A.36.041(3))

 

 13
 14

 Assault by Watercraft (RCW

79A.60.060)

 

 15
 16
 17

 Bribing a Witness/Bribe Received by

Witness (RCW 9A.72.090,

9A.72.100)

 

 18  Cheating 1 (RCW 9.46.1961)  

 19  Commercial Bribery (RCW 9A.68.060)  

 20  Counterfeiting (RCW 9.16.035(4))  

 21
 22

 Driving While Under the Influence

(RCW 46.61.502(6))

 

 23
 24

 Endangerment with a Controlled

Substance (RCW 9A.42.100)

 

 25  Escape 1 (RCW 9A.76.110)  

 26
 27

 Hit and Run—Injury (RCW

46.52.020(4)(b))

 

 28
 29

 Hit and Run with Vessel—Injury

Accident (RCW 79A.60.200(3))

 

 30  Identity Theft 1 (RCW 9.35.020(2))  

 31
 32
 33

 Indecent Exposure to Person Under Age

Fourteen (subsequent sex offense)

(RCW 9A.88.010)

 

 34
 35

 Influencing Outcome of Sporting Event

(RCW 9A.82.070)

 

p. 8 HB 2881



 1
 2

 Malicious Harassment (RCW

9A.36.080)

 

 3
 4
 5

 Physical Control of a Vehicle While

Under the Influence (RCW

46.61.504(6))

 

 6
 7
 8

 Possession of Depictions of a Minor

Engaged in Sexually Explicit

Conduct 2 (RCW 9.68A.070(2))

 

 9  Residential Burglary (RCW 9A.52.025)  

 10  Robbery 2 (RCW 9A.56.210)  

 11  Theft of Livestock 1 (RCW 9A.56.080)  

 12  Threats to Bomb (RCW 9.61.160)  

 13
 14

 Trafficking in Stolen Property 1 (RCW

9A.82.050)

 

 15
 16
 17

 Unlawful factoring of a credit card or

payment card transaction (RCW

9A.56.290(4)(b))

 

 18
 19
 20
 21

 Unlawful Operation of Platform that

Facilitates an Unauthorized

Gambling Activity (section 1 of this

act)

 

 22
 23
 24

 Unlawful transaction of health coverage

as a health care service contractor

(RCW 48.44.016(3))

 

 25
 26
 27

 Unlawful transaction of health coverage

as a health maintenance

organization (RCW 48.46.033(3))

 

 28
 29

 Unlawful transaction of insurance

business (RCW 48.15.023(3))

 

 30
 31

 Unlicensed practice as an insurance

professional (RCW 48.17.063(2))

 

 32
 33
 34

 Use of Proceeds of Criminal

Profiteering (RCW 9A.82.080 (1)

and (2))

 

 35
 36

 Vehicle Prowling 2 (third or subsequent

offense) (RCW 9A.52.100(3))

 

p. 9 HB 2881



 1
 2
 3
 4
 5

 Vehicular Assault, by being under the

influence of intoxicating liquor or

any drug, or by the operation or

driving of a vehicle in a reckless

manner (RCW 46.61.522)

 

 6
 7
 8

 Viewing of Depictions of a Minor

Engaged in Sexually Explicit

Conduct 1 (RCW 9.68A.075(1))

 

 9
 10

 Willful Failure to Return from Furlough

(RCW 72.66.060)

 

 11
 12

III Animal Cruelty 1 (Sexual Conduct or

Contact) (RCW 16.52.205(3))

 

 13
 14
 15
 16

 Assault 3 (Except Assault 3 of a Peace

Officer With a Projectile Stun Gun)

(RCW 9A.36.031 except subsection

(1)(h))

 

 17  Assault of a Child 3 (RCW 9A.36.140)  

 18
 19

 Bail Jumping with class B or C Felony

(RCW 9A.76.170(3)(c))

 

 20  Burglary 2 (RCW 9A.52.030)  

 21
 22
 23

 Communication with a Minor for

Immoral Purposes (RCW

9.68A.090)

 

 24
 25

 Criminal Gang Intimidation (RCW

9A.46.120)

 

 26  Custodial Assault (RCW 9A.36.100)  

 27
 28

 Cyberstalking (subsequent conviction or

threat of death) (RCW 9.61.260(3))

 

 29  Escape 2 (RCW 9A.76.120)  

 30  Extortion 2 (RCW 9A.56.130)  

 31  Harassment (RCW 9A.46.020)  

 32
 33

 Intimidating a Public Servant (RCW

9A.76.180)

 

 34
 35

 Introducing Contraband 2 (RCW

9A.76.150)

 

p. 10 HB 2881



 1
 2

 Malicious Injury to Railroad Property

(RCW 81.60.070)

 

 3  Mortgage Fraud (RCW 19.144.080)  

 4
 5
 6
 7

 Negligently Causing Substantial Bodily

Harm By Use of a Signal

Preemption Device (RCW

46.37.674)

 

 8
 9

 Organized Retail Theft 1 (RCW

9A.56.350(2))

 

 10  Perjury 2 (RCW 9A.72.030)  

 11
 12

 Possession of Incendiary Device (RCW

9.40.120)

 

 13
 14
 15

 Possession of Machine Gun or Short-

Barreled Shotgun or Rifle (RCW

9.41.190)

 

 16
 17

 Promoting Prostitution 2 (RCW

9A.88.080)

 

 18
 19

 Retail Theft with Special Circumstances

1 (RCW 9A.56.360(2))

 

 20
 21

 Securities Act violation (RCW

21.20.400)

 

 22
 23

 Tampering with a Witness (RCW

9A.72.120)

 

 24
 25
 26

 Telephone Harassment (subsequent

conviction or threat of death) (RCW

9.61.230(2))

 

 27  Theft of Livestock 2 (RCW 9A.56.083)  

 28
 29

 Theft with the Intent to Resell 1 (RCW

9A.56.340(2))

 

 30
 31

 Trafficking in Stolen Property 2 (RCW

9A.82.055)

 

 32
 33

 Unlawful Hunting of Big Game 1 (RCW

77.15.410(3)(b))

 

 34
 35

 Unlawful Imprisonment (RCW

9A.40.040)

 

p. 11 HB 2881



 1
 2

 Unlawful Misbranding of Food Fish or

Shellfish 1 (RCW 69.04.938(3))

 

 3
 4

 Unlawful possession of firearm in the

second degree (RCW 9.41.040(2))

 

 5
 6

 Unlawful Taking of Endangered Fish or

Wildlife 1 (RCW 77.15.120(3)(b))

 

 7
 8
 9

 Unlawful Trafficking in Fish, Shellfish,

or Wildlife 1 (RCW

77.15.260(3)(b))

 

 10
 11

 Unlawful Use of a Nondesignated

Vessel (RCW 77.15.530(4))

 

 12
 13
 14
 15

 Vehicular Assault, by the operation or

driving of a vehicle with disregard

for the safety of others (RCW

46.61.522)

 

 16
 17

 Willful Failure to Return from Work

Release (RCW 72.65.070)

 

 18
 19

II Commercial Fishing Without a License

1 (RCW 77.15.500(3)(b))

 

 20  Computer Trespass 1 (RCW 9A.90.040)  

 21  Counterfeiting (RCW 9.16.035(3))  

 22
 23

 Electronic Data Service Interference

(RCW 9A.90.060)

 

 24
 25

 Electronic Data Tampering 1 (RCW

9A.90.080)

 

 26  Electronic Data Theft (RCW 9A.90.100)  

 27
 28

 Engaging in Fish Dealing Activity

Unlicensed 1 (RCW 77.15.620(3))

 

 29
 30

 Escape from Community Custody

(RCW 72.09.310)

 

 31
 32
 33
 34

 Failure to Register as a Sex Offender

(second or subsequent offense)

(RCW 9A.44.130 prior to June 10,

2010, and RCW 9A.44.132)

 

 35
 36

 Health Care False Claims (RCW

48.80.030)

 

p. 12 HB 2881



 1  Identity Theft 2 (RCW 9.35.020(3))  

 2
 3

 Improperly Obtaining Financial

Information (RCW 9.35.010)

 

 4  Malicious Mischief 1 (RCW 9A.48.070)  

 5
 6

 Organized Retail Theft 2 (RCW

9A.56.350(3))

 

 7
 8

 Possession of Stolen Property 1 (RCW

9A.56.150)

 

 9
 10

 Possession of a Stolen Vehicle (RCW

9A.56.068)

 

 11
 12

 Retail Theft with Special Circumstances

2 (RCW 9A.56.360(3))

 

 13
 14
 15
 16

 Scrap Processing, Recycling, or

Supplying Without a License

(second or subsequent offense)

(RCW 19.290.100)

 

 17  Theft 1 (RCW 9A.56.030)  

 18
 19

 Theft of a Motor Vehicle (RCW

9A.56.065)

 

 20
 21
 22
 23

 Theft of Rental, Leased, Lease-

purchased, or Loaned Property

(valued at five thousand dollars or

more) (RCW 9A.56.096(5)(a))

 

 24
 25

 Theft with the Intent to Resell 2 (RCW

9A.56.340(3))

 

 26
 27

 Trafficking in Insurance Claims (RCW

48.30A.015)

 

 28
 29
 30

 Unlawful factoring of a credit card or

payment card transaction (RCW

9A.56.290(4)(a))

 

 31
 32
 33

 Unlawful Participation of Non-Indians

in Indian Fishery (RCW

77.15.570(2))

 

 34
 35

 Unlawful Practice of Law (RCW

2.48.180)

 

p. 13 HB 2881



 1
 2

 Unlawful Purchase or Use of a License

(RCW 77.15.650(3)(b))

 

 3
 4
 5

 Unlawful Trafficking in Fish, Shellfish,

or Wildlife 2 (RCW

77.15.260(3)(a))

 

 6
 7

 Unlicensed Practice of a Profession or

Business (RCW 18.130.190(7))

 

 8  Voyeurism 1 (RCW 9A.44.115)  

 9
 10

I Attempting to Elude a Pursuing Police

Vehicle (RCW 46.61.024)

 

 11
 12

 False Verification for Welfare (RCW

74.08.055)

 

 13  Forgery (RCW 9A.60.020)  

 14
 15
 16

 Fraudulent Creation or Revocation of a

Mental Health Advance Directive

(RCW 9A.60.060)

 

 17  Malicious Mischief 2 (RCW 9A.48.080)  

 18  Mineral Trespass (RCW 78.44.330)  

 19
 20

 Possession of Stolen Property 2 (RCW

9A.56.160)

 

 21  Reckless Burning 1 (RCW 9A.48.040)  

 22
 23

 Spotlighting Big Game 1 (RCW

77.15.450(3)(b))

 

 24
 25

 Suspension of Department Privileges 1

(RCW 77.15.670(3)(b))

 

 26
 27

 Taking Motor Vehicle Without

Permission 2 (RCW 9A.56.075)

 

 28  Theft 2 (RCW 9A.56.040)  

 29
 30

 Theft from a Vulnerable Adult 2 (RCW

9A.56.400(2))

 

 31
 32
 33
 34
 35
 36

 Theft of Rental, Leased, Lease-

purchased, or Loaned Property

(valued at seven hundred fifty

dollars or more but less than five

thousand dollars) (RCW

9A.56.096(5)(b))

 

p. 14 HB 2881



 1
 2
 3

 Transaction of insurance business

beyond the scope of licensure

(RCW 48.17.063)

 

 4
 5

 Unlawful Fish and Shellfish Catch

Accounting (RCW 77.15.630(3)(b))

 

 6
 7

 Unlawful Issuance of Checks or Drafts

(RCW 9A.56.060)

 

 8
 9

 Unlawful Possession of Fictitious

Identification (RCW 9A.56.320)

 

 10
 11

 Unlawful Possession of Instruments of

Financial Fraud (RCW 9A.56.320)

 

 12
 13

 Unlawful Possession of Payment

Instruments (RCW 9A.56.320)

 

 14
 15
 16

 Unlawful Possession of a Personal

Identification Device (RCW

9A.56.320)

 

 17
 18

 Unlawful Production of Payment

Instruments (RCW 9A.56.320)

 

 19
 20
 21
 22

 Unlawful Releasing, Planting,

Possessing, or Placing Deleterious

Exotic Wildlife (RCW

77.15.250(2)(b))

 

 23
 24

 Unlawful Trafficking in Food Stamps

(RCW 9.91.142)

 

 25
 26

 Unlawful Use of Food Stamps (RCW

9.91.144)

 

 27
 28

 Unlawful Use of Net to Take Fish 1

(RCW 77.15.580(3)(b))

 

 29
 30
 31

 Unlawful Use of Prohibited Aquatic

Animal Species (RCW

77.15.253(3))

 

 32  Vehicle Prowl 1 (RCW 9A.52.095)  

 33
 34

 Violating Commercial Fishing Area or

Time 1 (RCW 77.15.550(3)(b))

 

p. 15 HB 2881



NEW SECTION.  Sec. 4.  If any provision of this act or its1
application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the2
remainder of the act or the application of the provision to other3
persons or circumstances is not affected.4

--- END ---

p. 16 HB 2881



AN ACT Relating to loot boxes and similar types of mechanisms in1
online games and apps; creating a new section; and providing an2
expiration date.3

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:4

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 1.  (1) The use of loot boxes and similar5
types of mechanisms that provide randomized virtual items in online6
games or apps has raised a number of serious problems and concerns,7
including: (a) Whether games and apps containing these mechanisms are8
considered gambling under Washington law; (b) whether these9
mechanisms belong in games and apps; (c) whether minors and other10
young people, who may be more vulnerable to gambling addiction,11
should have access to games and apps with these mechanisms; and (d)12
the lack of disclosure and transparency with respect to the odds of13
receiving each type of virtual item.14

(2) The Washington state gambling commission must conduct a study15
of the use of loot boxes and similar types of mechanisms in online16
games or apps. In conducting the study, the Washington state gambling17
commission must consider and gather information related to the18
problems and concerns described in subsection (1) of this section,19
legislation and regulation from other jurisdictions, and other20

S-3638.1
SENATE BILL 6266

State of Washington 65th Legislature 2018 Regular Session
By Senators Ranker, Carlyle, and Keiser
Read first time 01/11/18.  Referred to Committee on Labor & Commerce.

p. 1 SB 6266



matters the Washington state gambling commission determines are1
relevant.2

(3) Not later than December 1, 2018, the Washington state3
gambling commission must provide the appropriate committees of the4
legislature written findings and provide recommendations regarding5
how to best regulate the practice of including loot boxes and similar6
types of mechanisms in online games and apps, including options for7
the adoption and implementation of a regulatory and enforcement8
system, restrictions on the sale of games containing these9
mechanisms, and any appropriate disclosures.10

(4) The Washington state gambling commission must consult with11
stakeholders in conducting the study and in making its12
recommendations.13

(5) This section expires December 1, 2019.14

--- END ---

p. 2 SB 6266



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 1, 2018 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Tanesha J. Cayou, 2017-01055 
  Final Order – February 8, 2018 Commission Meeting 
 
Ms. Tanesha J. Cayou has a certification authorizing Class III Employee activity at Emerald Queen 
Casino in Tacoma, Washington.  Her certification expires on May 3, 2018.   
 
On June 8, 2017, Ms. Cayou is alleged to have taken $100.00 from a casino patron while the patron 
was at a player terminal, then fled toward and through a door.  These actions were viewed on 
surveillance video, as well as corroborated by the patron in a written statement.  Ms. Cayou was 
apprehended by casino security and her tribal gaming certification was revoked the same day.  Ms. 
Cayou did not disclose the allegations or the revocation of her tribal gaming license to the 
Commission. 
 
Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on October 26, 2017, to Ms. Cayou 
by first class and certified mail to her last known address.  The first class mail was returned on 
November 7, 2017 as “Return to Sender, Attempted-Not Know, Unable to Forward.”  The certified 
mail was returned on November 21, 2017 as “Return to Sender, Unclaimed, Unable to Forward.”  
As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received any response from Ms. Cayou. 
 
Ms. Cayou’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Ms. Cayou’s right 
to a hearing in Case No. CR 2017-01055.  You may take final action against her gambling 
certification.  Based on her conduct, Ms. Cayou cannot show by clear and convincing evidence 
that she is qualified to keep her gambling certification.  Therefore, staff recommends that the 
Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Tanesha J. Cayou’s Class III Employee 
certification, License Number 69-39794. 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
February 1, 2018 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Travis L. Van Pelt, 2017-01049 
  Final Order – February 8, 2018 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Travis L. Van Pelt has a certification authorizing Class III Employee activity at Legends 
Casino in Toppenish, Washington.  His certification expires on July 28, 2018.   
 
On May 10, 2017, Mr. Van Pelt was indicted on a charge of Sexual Abuse of a Minor in the U.S. 
District Court in the Eastern District of Washington in Case Number 1:16-CR-02039-SAB.  On 
February 15, 2017, Mr. Van Pelt entered a plea of guilty, and on July 28, 2017, the U.S. District 
Court in the Eastern District of Washington entered a judgment and sentence against Mr. Van Pelt.  
He was found guilty of Sexual Abuse of a Minor and sentenced to 20 months of confinement and 
supervision of 15 years upon release from prison.  
 
On August 2, 2017, the Yakama Nation Gaming Commission summarily suspended Mr. Van Pelt’s 
tribal gaming license based on the above-referenced criminal conviction, and on September 25, 
2017, entered a final order revoking his tribal gaming license. Mr. Van Pelt did not disclose the 
indictment or the above criminal allegations or conviction to the Gambling Commission, or include 
them on his 2016 and 2017 Class III Employee Renewal Applications. 
 
Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on November 7, 2017, to Mr. Van Pelt 
by first class and certified mail to his last known address.  A receipt for delivery of the certified 
mail was received on November 21, 2017, indicating that service was completed on November 16, 
2017.  As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received any response from Mr. Van 
Pelt. 
 
Mr. Van Pelt’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Van Pelt’s 
right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2017-01049.  You may take final action against his gambling 
certification.  Based on his conduct, Mr. Van Pelt cannot show by clear and convincing evidence 
that he is qualified to keep his gambling certification.  Therefore, staff recommends that the 



Default Hearing – Travis L. Van Pelt 
February 8, 2018 
Page 2 
 
Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Travis L. Van Pelt’s Class III Employee 
certification, License Number 69-38554. 



 
 
 

Tab 3: FEBRUARY 2018 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Christopher Hancock, Olympia, Washington. 

Describe the Petitioner’s Request 
 
Mr. Hancock submitted a petition for rule change requesting a change to the Commission’s wagering 
limits for nonhouse-banked card games in WAC 230-15-135.  The petitioner did not submit proposed 
amended rule language.  Instead, he requests that the following limitations be removed from the rules: 

• The requirement that there be no more than four wagers in any betting round (WAC 230-15-
135(1)(b)); and 

• The requirement that the maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed $40 and a single 
wager in Class F and house-banked licensee card games must not exceed $300 (WAC 230-15-
135(1)(c)). 

Mr. Hancock suggests that if the Commission wishes to restrict the amount of money a player can lose in a 
game of poker, it should simply place a restriction on the amount of money a player can buy into a poker 
game. Mr. Hancock suggests a maximum of 250 times the big blind as the limit for the amount of money a 
player can buy into a game. 

Background 
 

The Commission reviewed this rule in 2016 when it accepted the rule petitions from card room owners 
George Teeny and Teresa Malphrus.  The Commission reviewed this rule from April 2016 until November 
2016.  The Commission then adopted a rule raising the wager limit for Class F and house-banked card room 
licensees from $100 to $300 for a single wager.  This change went into effect on December 23, 2016. 

Licensees Impacted  
 
The proposed change would impact all Class E, F and house-banked card room licensees. As of February 
1, 2018, there are 47 house-banked, 3 Class F, and 6 Class E licensed card rooms. 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends denial of the petition. All Washington authorized gambling activities are limited in 
nature and scope by RCW 9.46.010 and have wagering limits.  
 
The Commission must vote on this petition within 60 days of receiving it and you have the following 
options under the Administrative Procedure Act:   

 
1) Initiate rule-making proceedings. Staff would then work with the petitioner and 

stakeholders on language to remove the above-referenced rules and bring amended rules to 
you to file for further discussion, which would also require a vote; or 
  

 
 
 

Petition for Rule Change to  
WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games 

 
February 2018 – Request to Initiate Rule-Making 

 



2) Deny the petition in writing, stating the reasons for the denial and specifically address the 
concerns stated in the petition.  If appropriate, the Commission must indicate alternative 
means by which the agency will address the concerns raised in the petition. 

 
 



RULES PETITION RECEIVED ON January 4, 2018 

Petitioner's Name: Christopher Scott Hancock 
Rule Petition Type: Amend Rule – I am requesting WSGC to change an existing rule. 

==Amend Rule – I am requesting WSGC to change an existing rule.== 

List rule number (WAC) if known: WAC 230-15-135 

I am requesting the following change: 

I want to eliminate or modify sections 1(b) and 1(c) of this WAC to allow for No Limit Texas 
Hold'em to be properly authorized. Specifically, eliminate the restriction on the number of wagers 
allowed in a round of betting, and eliminate the restriction on the size of wagers. 

RCW 9.46.0282 authorizes the Commission to establish limits on wagers. This change is needed 
because: 

As the rules currently stand, section 1b and section 1c make No Limit Texas Hold'em functionally 
banned in the state of Washington. Rule 1c is particularly egregious. It's as if Washington 
mandated that basketball be played in the state on 8 foot rims instead of 10 foot rims. 

No Limit Texas Hold'em is probably the most popular card game in America, and it has long been 
the poker game featured at the main event of the World Series of Poker. Washington is woefully 
and embarrassingly behind on this. States like Nevada, New Mexico, and California manage to get 
by with rules that allow for No Limit Texas Hold'em to be played in card rooms and casinos around 
their states. Yet Washington has these smothering restrictions on wager increments and the number 
of raises in a round of betting. 

If the Commission wishes to restrict the amount of money a player can lose in a game of poker, it 
should simply place a restriction on the amount of money a player can buy into *a game* with. (I 
would suggest a maximum of 250 times the big blind.) The rules as they currently exist only 
provide the appearance of protection, and they come at the cost of destroying the ability of the card 
rooms and casinos of the state to host the most popular poker game in the world. This surely 
reduces the amount of tax revenue the state collects. 

The effect of this rule change will be: 

Washington residents will no longer have to travel for a proper No Limit Texas Hold'em game. 
Tourists to Washington will be able to play the game in the state as well.  

mailto:christopher.s.hancock@gmail.com


Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits:Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits:
(1) (1) PokerPoker --
(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and
(b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial (b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial 

wager plus three raises; andwager plus three raises; and
(c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty dollars; however, class (c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty dollars; however, class 

F and house-banked card game licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed three F and house-banked card game licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed three 
hundred dollars;hundred dollars;

(2) (2) Games based on achieving a specific number of pointsGames based on achieving a specific number of points - Each point must not - Each point must not 
exceed five cents in value;exceed five cents in value;

(3) (3) AnteAnte - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any 
game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule:game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule:

(a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum (a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum 
wager allowed for the first betting round; andwager allowed for the first betting round; and

(b) Be used as part of a player's wager;(b) Be used as part of a player's wager;
(4) (4) Panguingue (Pan)Panguingue (Pan) - The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An - The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An 

ante must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may ante must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may 
collect no more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player.collect no more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player.

[Statutory Authority: RCW [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.0709.46.070 and and 9.46.02019.46.0201. WSR 16-23-153, § 230-15-135, filed . WSR 16-23-153, § 230-15-135, filed 
11/22/16, effective 12/23/16; WSR 16-18-024, § 230-15-135, filed 8/26/16, effective 9/26/16. 11/22/16, effective 12/23/16; WSR 16-18-024, § 230-15-135, filed 8/26/16, effective 9/26/16. 
Statutory Authority: RCW Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.0709.46.070 and and 9.46.02829.46.0282. WSR 12-21-048 (Order 680), § 230-15-. WSR 12-21-048 (Order 680), § 230-15-
135, filed 10/12/12, effective 1/1/13; WSR 09-21-013 (Order 658), § 230-15-135, filed 10/9/09, 135, filed 10/12/12, effective 1/1/13; WSR 09-21-013 (Order 658), § 230-15-135, filed 10/9/09, 
effective 11/9/09. Statutory Authority: RCW effective 11/9/09. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.0709.46.070. WSR 09-09-056 (Order 642), § 230-15-. WSR 09-09-056 (Order 642), § 230-15-
135, filed 4/10/09, effective 7/1/09; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-15-135, filed 10/22/07, 135, filed 4/10/09, effective 7/1/09; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-15-135, filed 10/22/07, 
effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-135, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-135, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]

WAC 230-15-135WAC 230-15-135

Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games.Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games.

Page 1 of 1WAC 230-15-135: Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games.

1/29/2018http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-15-135



1 

Tab 4: FEBRUARY 2018 Commission Meeting Agenda.   Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Rule Changes 
This is third of four packages staff will bring forward to make changes to the Commission’s licensing fee 
structure.  This third package sets the individual license fees under the new license fee structure.  The key 
changes to individual license fees in this third package: 

• Establishes the license fees for individuals.  There are basically two annual license fee schedules
for individuals:

License Type 
New 

Application Fee 
Renewal 

Fees 

Class F and HBCR card room employees 
and all representatives 

$275 (in-state 
fee for CREs) 

$170 

Nonhouse-banked card room employees, 
charitable or nonprofit gambling manager, 
and commercial gambling manager 

$200 $95 

• Requires all representatives to apply and pay a fee when adding or changing employers consistent
with all other individual licensees.  The fees are consistent with other fees for this transaction.

• Outlines in rule the card room employees required to pay “out-of-state” new application fees.

A fourth rules package includes any corrections or updates to the rules filed in packages #1, #2, or #3. 

Attachment: 
Summary of Fee Changes 

Policy Considerations 
The Commissioners began considering changing the fee structure in 2014. The current fee structure was 
created over 40 years ago.  It began with 25 fees.  Today the Gambling Commission has approximately 
194 different fees for Commercial and Non-Profit organizations and individuals. This fee schedule is 
typically based on a “class” system, which can be cumbersome for licensees and agency staff. The 
Gambling Commission is looking to simplify this current system to allow it to be easier to navigate and 
have a licensing fee schedule that is more predictable for both the agency and its licensees.  

Rule Changes / Fee Simplification (Package #3) 

New Rule:  WAC 230-05-175 Individuals license fees.

February 2018 – Up for Further Discussion 
January 2018 – Up for Further Discussion 

November 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 



2 

Staff Recommendation 
Up for further discussion. 

Staff requests an effective date of May 1, 2018, so that licensees who are renewing June 30, 2018, will pay 
their fees under the new system. 

 

 



NEW SECTION

WAC 230-05-175  Individual license fees.  Individuals must pay 
the following fees:

(1) Annual license and additional employer fees:

License Type New Application Fee Annual Renewal Fee
Additional or Change 

of Employer Fee
Call center for enhanced raffle representative $275 $170 -
Card room employee license - Nonhouse-
banked (Class A)

$200 $95 $65

Card room employee license - Class F and 
house-banked (Class B)

$275 (in-state)
$340 (out-of-state)

$170 $65

Charitable or nonprofit gambling manager $200 $95 $95
Commercial gambling manager $200 $95 $95
Distributor representative $275 $170 $65
Linked bingo prize provider representative $275 $170 $65
Manufacturer representative $275 $170 $65
Gambling service supplier representative $275 $170 $65

(2) Class B card room employees must pay the out-of-state appli­
cation fee if over the last ten years the applicant lived outside of 
Washington for six nonconsecutive months or more.

(3) Other service fees:
Transaction Fee

Change of name $30
Card room employee 
emergency waiver request $65
Duplicate license $30

(4) Military personnel returning from service. If a license ex­
pires while an individual is on active military service, the individu­
al may apply to have their license reissued at the renewal fee. The 
application must be received within six months after completing their 
active military service. The applicant must provide evidence of the 
completion date of active military service.

[ 1 ] OTS-9138.2



  

   
  

Summary of Fee Changes 

 

 
License Type 

 
New Application Fee 

 
Annual Renewal Fee 

Additional or 
Change of  

Employer Fee 
Call center for enhanced raffle rep-

resentative 

$275 

Decrease $1 

$170 

Increase $3 

- 

Card room employee license – 

Nonhouse-banked (Class A) 

$200 

No Change 

$95 

No Change 

$65 

No Change 

Card room employee license – 

Class F and house-banked 

 (Class B) 

$275 (in-state) 

Increase $2 

$340 (out-of-state) 

Increase $1 

$170 

Increase $3 

$65 

No Change 

 

Charitable or nonprofit gambling 

manager 

$200 

Increase $4 

$95 

Increase $2 

$95 

Increase $2 

Commercial gambling manager $200 

No Change 

$95 

No Change 

$95 

No Change 

Distributor representative $275 

Decrease $1 

$170 

Increase $3 

$65  

See Note 1 

Linked bingo prize provider repre-

sentative 

$275 

Decrease $1 

$170 

Increase $3 

$65  

See Note 1 

Manufacturer representative $275 

Decrease $1 

$170 

Increase $3 

$65 

Increase $65; 

See Note 2  

Gambling service supplier repre-

sentative 

$275 

Decrease $1 

$170 

Increase $3 

$65  

See Note 1 



  

 [ 2 ]  
  

Other service fees: 

Transaction Fee 

Change of name $30 

Increase $1 

Card room employee emergency waiver re-

quest 

$65 

No Change 

Duplicate license $30 

Increase $1 

 

NOTE 1:  Currently, distributor, linked bingo prize provider and service supplier representatives can on-
ly represent one distributor, linked bingo prize provider or service supplier at a time (WAC 230-03-
330(1)).  If a distributor, linked bingo prize provider or service supplier leaves their employer and goes to 
another employer during their license year, they have to reapply and pay the renewal fee of $167.  By 
adding a fee and rule language to allow these representatives to change employers, these representative 
will save $102 if they change employers during their license year.  
 
NOTE 2:  Currently, manufacturer representatives can represent more than one manufacturer but they do 
not pay a fee when adding or changing employers (WAC 230-03-330(2) and (3)).  The new rules will re-
quire manufacturer representatives to pay $65 and tell us when they add or change employers during their 
license year. 
 



1 

Tab 5: FEBRUARY 2018 Commission Meeting Agenda.   Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Rule Changes 
This is the fourth and likely last rules package staff will bring forward to make changes to the 
Commission’s licensing fee structure. The fourth rules package:  

• Clarifies that annual activity report filers will report their gambling activity for their license year
through June 30, 2018 on July 30, 2018.  All licensees will begin reporting their activity quarterly
beginning with the July 1-September 30 quarter. These rules were included in rule package #2:

o WAC 230-05-102 - All licensed organizations report activity quarterly beginning with the
July 1, 2018 through September 30, 2018 quarter.

o WAC 230-07-155 - Reporting annual activities for raffles, enhanced raffles, amusement
games, Class A, B or C bingo, or combination licenses;

o WAC 230-07-160 - Reporting annual activity for agricultural fairs; and
o WAC 230-09-056 - Activity reports for fund-raising events.
o WAC 230-10-457 – Activity reports for linked bingo prize providers.
o WAC 230-13-169 - Annual activity reports for commercial amusement game licensees.

• Addresses I.D. Stamps:
o I.D. stamps will only be required for punchboards/pull-tabs and
o The Commission will provide I.D. stamps to punchboards/pull-tab manufacturers at no

cost;
o The following rules were revised:

 WAC 230-10-040 - Disposable bingo cards - Additional requirements;
 WAC 230-10-180 - Electronic bingo card daubers requirements;
 WAC 230-16-160 - I.D. stamps for gambling equipment.
 WAC 230-16-165 - Obtaining I.D. stamps;
 WAC 230-16-175 - Placing I.D. stamps and records entry labels; and
 WAC 230-16-180 - Records retention for I.D. stamp records.

Rule Changes / Fee Simplification (Package #4) 
Various Rules in: 
• WAC 230-05-102 – All licensed organizations report activity quarterly

beginning with the July 1, 2018 through September 30, 2018 quarter.
• WAC 230-07-155 – Reporting annual activity for raffles, enhanced raffles,

amusement games, Class A, B, or C bingo, or combination licenses.
• WAC 230-07-160 – Reporting annual activity for agricultural fairs.
• WAC 230-09-056 – Activity reports for fund-raising events.
• WAC 230-10-040 – Disposable bingo cards – Additional requirements.
• WAC 230-10-180 – Electronic bingo card daubers requirements.
• WAC 230-10-457 – Activity reports for linked bingo prize providers.
• WAC 230-13-169 – Annual activity reports for commercial amusement game

licensees.
• Chapter 230 – 16 WAC – Manufacturer, Distributor, and Gambling Service

Supplier Rules.

February 2018 – Up for Further Discussion 
January 2018 – Discussion and Possible Filing 



2 

Policy Considerations 
The Commissioners began considering changing the fee structure in 2014. The current fee structure was 
created over 40 years ago.  It began with 25 fees.  Today the Gambling Commission has approximately 
194 different fees for Commercial and Non-Profit organizations and individuals. This fee schedule is 
typically based on a “class” system, which can be cumbersome for licensees and agency staff. The 
Gambling Commission is looking to simplify this current system to allow it to be easier to navigate and 
have a licensing fee schedule that is more predictable for both the agency and its licensees.  

Staff Recommendation 
Staff anticipates asking for an effective date of July 1, 2018. 

 

 



NEW SECTION

WAC 230-05-102  All licensed organizations report activity quar­
terly beginning with the July 1, 2018, through September 30, 2018, 
quarter.  (1) Beginning July 1, 2018, all licensed organizations must 
submit activity reports quarterly, regardless of whether they previ­
ously submitted reports annually, quarterly, or semi-annually and re­
gardless of when their permit or license year ends.

(2) This includes gambling service suppliers and any other li­
censed organizations that did not previously submit activity reports.

(3) Licensed organizations that report annually must submit an 
activity report from the beginning of their license year through June 
30, 2018. These reports are due July 30, 2018.

Beginning July 1, 2018, licensed organizations that report annu­
ally will report quarterly as set forth in this section.

(4) The activity reports must be in the format we require and 
must:

Cover the period:
Be received by us no later 
than:

July 1 through September 
30

October 30

October 1 through 
December 31

January 30

January 1 through March 
31

April 30

April 1 through June 30 July 30

(5) All licensed organizations must submit quarterly license fees 
to us for each licensed gambling activity after the first quarter of 
their license year that begins on or after July 1, 2018, as set forth 
in WAC 230-05-124.

[ 1 ] OTS-9110.3



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 13-19-056, filed 9/16/13, effective 
10/17/13)

WAC 230-07-155  Reporting annual activity for raffles, enhanced 
raffles, amusement games, Class A, B, or C bingo, or combination li­
censes.  (1) Raffle, enhanced raffle, amusement game, Class A, B, or C 
bingo, or combination licensees must submit an annual report of all 
their activities in the format we require.

(2) We must receive the completed report in our office postmarked 
no later than thirty days following the expiration of their li­
cense(s). Licensed organizations that report annually must submit an 
activity report from the beginning of their license year through June 
30, 2018, by July 30, 2018. These reports are due July 30, 2018.

Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be 
submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102.

(3) The highest ranking officer or his/her designee must sign the 
report.

(4) If the licensee has someone else prepare the report, then the 
preparer must include his/her name and phone number on the report.

(5) Licensees that operate retail sales activities in conjunction 
with bingo games must report the net income from those retail sales 
activities.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-10-032, filed 4/24/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-07-160  Reporting annual activity for agricultural fairs. 
(1) Charitable or nonprofit licensees who operate bingo, raffles, 
and/or amusement games only at agricultural fairs and other special 
properties and permittees as defined in WAC 230-03-015 who operate 
bingo under another's license at agricultural fairs and other special 
properties must submit an annual report of all their activities in the 
format we require.

(2) We must receive the completed report in our office postmarked 
no later than thirty days following the expiration of the license 
year. Licensed organizations that report annually must submit an ac­
tivity report from the beginning of their license year through June 
30, 2018, by July 30, 2018. These reports are due July 30, 2018.

Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be 
submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102.

(3) Permittees operating under another's license must provide the 
licensee with all information about the permitted operation that is 
needed by the licensee to complete the annual activity report not less 
than ten days before the time that we require the licensee to file his 
or her report.

(4) The highest ranking officer or his or her designee must sign 
the report. If the licensee has someone else prepare the report, then 
the preparer must include his or her name and phone number on the re­
port.

[ 1 ] OTS-9392.1



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-21-116, filed 10/22/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-09-056  Activity reports for fund-raising events.  Fund-
raising event licensees must submit an activity report to the commis­
sion concerning the operation of the licensed activities of each 
event. Licensees must complete the report in the format we require and 
the report must be:

(1) Received at our administrative office or postmarked no later 
than thirty days after the end of the authorized operating day or 
days((; and)). Licensed organizations that report annually must submit 
an activity report from the beginning of their license year through 
June 30, 2018, by July 30, 2018. These reports are due July 30, 2018.

Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be 
submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102.

(2) Signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer or 
designee. If someone other than the licensee or an employee prepares 
the report, the preparer must print his or her name and phone number 
on the report.

[ 1 ] OTS-9400.1



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-10-033, filed 4/24/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-10-040  Disposable bingo cards—Additional requirements. 
(1) Disposable bingo cards must:

(a) Meet all bingo card requirements; and
(b) Be imprinted with a unique set and configuration of numbers 

on each card; and
(c) Not duplicate cards within a specific product line; and
(d) Include a control system in each set which:
(i) Identifies that specific set and each specific card within 

that set; and
(ii) Allows tracking of the transfer of cards from the point of 

manufacture to the operator; and
(iii) Facilitates sale by the operator to the player((; and
(e) Have an identification and inspection stamp from us sold to 

the licensed manufacturer or to the operator and attached to the ser­
ies by the licensed manufacturer, the operator, or us)).

(2) Bingo licensees using the combination receipting method may 
divide sets or collations of cards into no more than ten subgroups. 
Licensees must follow disposable bingo card inventory control require­
ments for each subgroup.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-21-116, filed 10/22/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-10-180  Electronic bingo card daubers requirements.  (1) 
Electronic bingo card daubers must:

(a) Be manufactured by licensed manufacturers; and
(b) Be sold, leased, and serviced by licensed distributors or 

manufacturers. Operators may perform routine maintenance; and
(c) ((Have an I.D. stamp from us that was sold to the licensed 

manufacturer or the operator and attached by the licensed manufactur­
er, the operator, or us; and

(d))) Be unable to modify the computer program which operates the 
dauber units or the electronic database which stores the bingo cards; 
and

(((e))) (d) Store preprinted bingo cards a player purchases. The 
electronic images of cards stored in daubers are for player conven­
ience only and are not bingo cards for purposes of this title; and

(((f))) (e) Use cards that meet all requirements of bingo cards 
and electronic bingo cards; and

(((g))) (f) Allow players to input the numbers called; and
(((h))) (g) Compare input numbers to bingo cards stored in an 

electronic database; and
(((i))) (h) Identify to the player those stored bingo cards that 

contain the input numbers.
(2) Operators providing electronic daubers must have the cards 

printed, placed in a master index, and available for on-site inspec­
tion at the request of law enforcement agencies, customers, or us.

[ 1 ] OTS-9317.1



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-21-116, filed 10/22/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-10-457  Activity reports for linked bingo prize provid­
ers.  Linked bingo prize providers must submit activity reports to us 
twice a year for their sales and services. The activity reports must 
be in the format we require and must:

(1) Cover the periods:
(a) January 1 through June 30; and
(b) July 1 through December 31; and
(2) Be received at our administrative office or postmarked no 

later than thirty days following the end of the reporting period. Li­
censed organizations that report annually must submit an activity re­
port from the beginning of their license year through June 30, 2018, 
by July 30, 2018. These reports are due July 30, 2018.

Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be 
submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and

(3) Be signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer 
or a designee. If someone other than the licensee or an employee pre­
pares the report, the preparer must print his or her name and business 
telephone number on the report; and

(4) Submit a report for any period of time their license was val­
id, even if they had no activity or did not renew.

[ 1 ] OTS-9388.1



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-20-007, filed 9/18/08, effective 
1/1/09)

WAC 230-13-169  Annual activity reports for commercial amusement 
game licensees.  Commercial amusement game licensees must submit an 
annual activity report to us in the format we require and must:

(1) Cover the license year of one calendar year or less; and
(2) Be received at our administrative office or postmarked no 

later than thirty days following the end of the reporting period. Li­
censed organizations that report annually must submit an activity re­
port from the beginning of their license year through June 30, 2018, 
by July 30, 2018. These reports are due July 30, 2018.

Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be 
submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and

(3) Be signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer 
or a designee. If someone other than the commercial amusement game li­
censee or its employee prepares the report, then it must provide the 
preparer's name and business telephone number; and

(4) Submit a report for any period of time their license was val­
id, even if they had no activity or did not renew their license; and

(5) Complete the report according to the instructions furnished 
with the report.

[ 1 ] OTS-9390.2



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-16 WAC
 

MANUFACTURER, DISTRIBUTOR, AND GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIER RULES
 

Last Update: 7/22/14
 

WAC
 

GENERAL RULES FOR MANUFACTURERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIERS
 

230-16-001
 

Manufacturers, distributors, and gambling service suppliers must ensure representatives 

are licensed.
 

230-16-005
 

Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows and conventions.
 

PUNCH BOARD AND PULL-TAB REQUIREMENTS
 

230-16-010
 

Manufacturers, distributors, and gambling service suppliers must comply with punch board 

and pull-tab rules.
 

230-16-015
 

Punch board and pull-tab sales restrictions.
 

230-16-020
 

Sales to Indian tribes.
 

230-16-025
 

Punch board construction.
 

230-16-030
 

Step up punch board construction.
 

230-16-035
 

Pull-tab construction.
 

230-16-040
 

Winner protection and secondary verification codes.
 

230-16-045
 

Defective punch boards, pull-tabs, or pull-tab dispensers.
 

230-16-050
 

Punch board and pull-tab quality control program.
 

230-16-052
 

Standards for flares.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-16-055
 

Bonus or step up flares.
 

230-16-060
 

Assembly and packaging of pull-tab series.
 

PROGRESSIVE JACKPOT PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-065
 

Approvals needed before offering progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-16-070
 

Prizes in progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-16-075
 

Assembly and packaging of progressive pull-tab series.
 

EVENT PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-080
 

Event pull-tab series.
 

BONUS PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-085
 

Bonus pull-tab series with carry-over jackpots.
 

CARRY-OVER JACKPOTS
 

230-16-090
 

Secondary win codes for carry-over jackpots.
 

230-16-095
 

Prizes in carry-over jackpot pull-tab series.
 

SEAL CARD PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-100
 

Seal card pull-tab series.
 

230-16-102
 

Cumulative prize pool pull-tab games.
 

230-16-104
 

Cumulative prize pool pull-tab series flare.
 

BINGO CARDS
 

230-16-105
 

Disposable bingo cards.
 

230-16-110
 

Duplicate bingo cards.
 

230-16-120
 

Bingo card manufacturing control system.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-16-125
 

Disposable bingo card packing slip and package label.
 

230-16-130
 

Disposable bingo card sales.
 

230-16-135
 

"Player selection" bingo cards.
 

230-16-140
 

"Hidden face" bingo cards.
 

230-16-145
 

Electronically generated bingo card computer systems.
 

230-16-150
 

Control system for electronically generated bingo cards.
 

GAMBLING EQUIPMENT
 

230-16-151
 

Gambling equipment connecting to external tools for standard maintenance.
 

ELECTRONIC CARD FACSIMILES
 

230-16-155
 

Electronic card facsimiles.
 

I.D. STAMPS
 

230-16-160
 

I.D. stamps for gambling equipment.
 

230-16-165
 

ObtainingPurchasing I.D. stamps.
 

230-16-170
 

I.D. stamps must be visible.
 

230-16-175
 

Placing I.D. stamps and records entry labels.
 

230-16-180
 

Record retention for I.D. stamp records.
 

RECORDKEEPING
 

230-16-185
 

Accounting records for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-187
 

Accounting records for manufacturer's special sales permit holders.
 

230-16-190
 

Sales invoices for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-195
 

Additional requirements for sales invoices.
 



WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING

230-16-200
 

Sales journals for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-205
 

Record retention for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-210
 

Alternative formats for recordkeeping.
 

230-16-215
 

Accounting records and record retention for gambling service suppliers.
 

230-16-220
 

Activity reports by manufacturers and distributors.
 



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-19-069, filed 9/17/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-16-160  I.D. stamps for gambling equipment.  (((1) If 
gambling equipment requires our approval, manufacturers and distribu­
tors must not attach I.D. stamps to the equipment until we approve it.

(2))) Manufacturers must permanently and prominently attach our 
I.D. stamps to their gambling equipment. Once attached, no one may re­
move or tamper with the I.D. stamps. Manufacturers must attach I.D. 
stamps to:

(((a))) (1) Punch boards; and
(((b))) (2) Pull-tab flares((; and
(c) Pull-tab dispensers; and
(d) Disposable bingo card packing slips; and
(e) Coin or token activated amusement games operated at locations 

with a Class A license; and
(f) Electronic bingo card daubers; and
(g) Electronic card facsimile tables; and
(h) Other items specified by the director)).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-19-069, filed 9/17/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-16-165  ((Purchasing)) Obtaining I.D. stamps.  (1) Manu­
facturers must ((purchase)) obtain I.D. stamps from us and attach them 
to the equipment specified in this chapter.

(2) Any manufacturer may return damaged stamps to us with a de­
tailed listing of the damaged stamps ((and must pay a service 
charge)). We will then replace the I.D. stamps.

(((3) Owners of gambling equipment which require annual I.D. 
stamps must purchase I.D. stamps from us and attach them to their gam­
bling equipment. Annual I.D. stamps expire on December 31 each year, 
even if the equipment was placed out for play mid-year.

(4) Owners of pull-tab dispensers must purchase I.D. stamps to 
replace worn I.D. stamps on pull-tab dispensers. The owner must send 
us:

(a) A copy of the invoice for the purchase of the dispenser from 
the manufacturer, distributor, or operator; or

(b) A complete description of the pull-tab dispenser, serial num­
ber, manufacturer, and the previous I.D. stamp number, if known.))

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-19-069, filed 9/17/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-16-175  Placing I.D. stamps and records entry labels. 
(((1))) Manufacturers must attach I.D. stamps and records entry labels 
to approved gambling equipment in the following way:

(((a))) (1) Punch boards - On the reverse side of the board in an 
area that will not obstruct removal of punches. If sufficient space is 
not available on the reverse side, licensees may wrap the records en­

[ 1 ] OTS-9274.1



try labels around or partially attach them to the edge of the punch 
board as long as this does not obstruct display of prizes available or 
other information we require.

(((b))) (2) Pull tabs - On the face or reverse side of the flare. 
If placed on the face, the I.D. stamps and records entry labels must 
not obstruct prizes available or other information we require.

(((c) Disposable bingo cards - On the packing label on the out­
side of the shipping carton. Manufacturers must attach records entry 
labels to the packing slip. When they pack a set or collation of cards 
in more than one shipping container, manufacturers may attach the I.D. 
stamp to the first container and print the I.D. stamp number on all 
remaining shipping containers.

(2) Electronic pull-tab dispensers, electronic bingo card daub­
ers, and electronic facsimile card tables - Manufacturers or owners 
must attach I.D. stamps on the outside of the main body, in an area 
that is not normally removed and replaced, and in a way that does not 
obstruct the view of the pull-tabs available for play, the bingo 
cards, or the card facsimiles.

(3) Electromechanical and mechanical pull-tab dispensers - Manu­
facturers or owners must attach I.D. stamps on the outside of the main 
body, in an area that is not normally removed and replaced, and in a 
way that does not obstruct the view of the pull-tabs available for 
play or the card facsimiles. Licensees may discard records entry la­
bels.

(4) Amusement games - Owners must attach I.D. stamps on the out­
side of the main body, in an area that is not normally removed and re­
placed, and in a way that does not obstruct the view of the amusement 
game prizes.))

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-19-069, filed 9/17/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-16-180  Record retention for I.D. stamp records.  Manu­
facturers must keep records that provide an accountability trail for 
all I.D. stamps ((purchased)).

(1) For I.D. stamps attached to gambling equipment and sold, man­
ufacturers must keep the I.D. stamps records for at least three years 
and include, at least:

(a) The name of the purchaser;
(b) The date of the sale; and
(c) The invoice number recording the sale.
(2) For all unused or damaged I.D. stamps, manufacturers must in­

definitely retain the I.D. stamps or provide records that include 
enough detail to allow us to account for all I.D. stamps.

[ 2 ] OTS-9274.1


	February Cover
	Commissioners
	February Agenda
	January Minutes
	Tab 1 License
	Tab 1 Legislative Report
	Tab 2 Default
	Tab 3 Hancock
	Tab 4 Package #3
	Tab 5 Package #4



